
Lone Tree City Council Agenda 
Tuesday, September 1, 2015 

Meeting Location:  City Council Meeting Room, Lone Tree Civic Center, 8527 Lone Tree Parkway. 
Meeting Procedure: The Lone Tree City Council and staff will meet in a public Study Session at 
4:30pm. At 6:00pm and following the meeting, if necessary, the Council Meeting will adjourn and convene 
in Executive Session. If an Executive Session is not necessary, Council will recess for dinner. The Regular 
Session will be convened at 7:00pm. Study Sessions and Regular Sessions are open to the public, Executive 
Sessions are not. Following the conclusion of the Council Meeting the City Council will convene as the 
Lone Tree Business Improvement District Board of Directors and hold the inaugural meeting. 
Comments from the public are welcome at these occasions: 1. Public Comment (brief comments on items 
not scheduled for a public hearing) 2. Public Hearings. Contact the City Clerk if special arrangements are 
needed to attend (at least 24 hours in advance).

4:30pm Study Session Agenda 
1.
2.
3.
4.
5. Resolution of Support for the Scientific and Cultural Facilities District (SCFD)
6. Parkway Drive Reconstruction Contract
7.

6:00pm Executive Session Agenda 
1. Roll Call
2. Executive Session

7:00pm Regular Session Agenda 
3. Opening of Regular Meeting/Pledge of Allegiance
4. Amendments to the Agenda and Adoption of the Agenda
5. Conflict of Interest Inquiry
6. Public Comment
7. Announcements
8. Presentations

a. Constitution Week Proclamation
9. Consent Agenda

a. Minutes of the August 18, 2015 Regular Meeting
b. Claims for the Period of August 10-24, 2015

10. Community Development
a. Public Hearing (continued from 8/18/15): General Motors replat, rezone (First

reading) and SIP amendment
i. Parkway Filing 1, Block 3, Lot 1 and Tract H Project SB15-51 (subdivision

replat)
ii. Ordinance 15-02, APPROVING THE REZONING OF CERTAIN TERRITORY

KNOWN AND DESIGNATED AS A PORTION OF TRACT H, PARKWAY
SUBDIVISION FILING NO. 1, IN THE CITY OF LONE TREE, COLORADO
(GENERAL MOTORS) (First Reading) Project ZR15-37

09/01/15 City Council Packet Page 1 of 53

Introduction of Frank Ramsey, our new IT Support Specialist 
Colorado Department of Transportation (CDOT) Incident Management Response Report
Parker Police Department Dispatch Overview 
Lone Tree Arts Center (LTAC) Grant Update 

Lincoln Pedestrian Bridge Contract Update



iii. Parkway Filing 1, Block 3, Lot 4, Project #SP15-36 SIP amendment for added
parking and related changes

b. Approval of RidgeGate Filing 17, 1st Amdt Lot 6A Replat Project #SB15-42R
11. Administrative Matters

a. Public Hearing: Ordinance 15-05, AN EMERGENCY ORDINANCE FOR THE
DISSOLUTION OF THE EXISTING LONE TREE ENTERTAINMENT
BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

b. Public Hearing: Ordinance 15-03, AMENDING PROVISIONS OF THE SALES
TAX AND BUSINESS LICENSING ORDINANCES (Second Reading)

c. Public Hearing: Affirmation of Emergency Ordinance 15-04, ACCEPTING a Petition
for the Organization of a Business Improvement District in the City of Lone Tree and
Establishing, Creating and Organizing the Lone Tree Business Improvement District

d. Resolution 15-11, APPOINTING A REPRESENTATIVE TO THE DOUGLAS
COUNTY HOUSING PARTNERSHIP (Bryant)

12. Council Comments
13. Adjournment

Lone Tree Business Improvement District Agenda 
(Immediately following the 7:00 p.m. City Council meeting) 

1. Opening of Inaugural Meeting
2. Roll Call
3. Resolution 15-01, A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE LONE

TREE BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT, LONE TREE, COLORADO,
CALLING FOR AN ELECTION SUBMITTING CERTAIN BALLOT QUESTIONS TO
THE ELECTORS OF THE LONE TREE BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

4. Other Business
5. Adjournment

City of Lone Tree Upcoming Events 
More info available at www.cityoflonetree.com and www.lonetreeartscenter.org 

 Seedlings: Bug Safari, September 1, 2015, 9:30 and 11:00 a.m., LTAC Event Hall
 Discover Lone Tree: 80’s Night, Boogie Machine Band, Back to the Future Movie,

September 4th at 6:00 pm, LTAC Terrace Theater.   A Taste of Lone Tree, September
5th, 11:00 am to 7:00 pm, Lincoln Commons.  Open House at LTAC, September 5th,
1:00 – 4:00 pm.  Golf at Golf Club and Hotel, September 5th, 2:00 – 4:00 pm.  Historic
Tours at Schweiger Ranch, September 6th, 1:00 – 3:00 pm.  Summer Concert in the Park,
September 6th, 6:00 pm

 Baroque Chamber Orchestra of Colorado, Wednesday, September 9, 2015, 1:30 pm,
Event Hall

 Wag N’ Romp Dog Event, Saturday, September 12, 2015 10 am – 2:00 pm, Cook Creek
Park

 CSO: Audrey the Amazing Violin, Sunday, September 13, 2015 at 1:30 pm, LTAC Event
Hall

 SF Family Tree: Audrey the Amazing Violin, Sunday, September 13, 2015 at 4:00 pm,
LTAC Event Hall

09/01/15 City Council Packet Page 2 of 53



 
 

PROCLAMATION 
 

___________ 
 
 
WHEREAS, September 17, 2015 marks the two hundred and twenty-eight anniversary of the 
drafting of the Constitution of the United States of America by the Constitutional Convention; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, it is fitting and proper to officially recognize this magnificent document and its 
memorable anniversary; and to the patriotic celebrations which will commemorate the occasion; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, Public Law 915 guarantees the issuing of a proclamation each year by the President 
of the United States of America designating September 17 through 23 as Constitution Week;  
 

NOW THEREFORE, I, JAMES D. GUNNING, MAYOR, of the City of Lone 
Tree, Colorado, by virtue of the authority vested in me, do hereby officially 
proclaim September 17 through September 23, 2015 to be: 

 

“CONSTITUTION WEEK” 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused the official seal of the City of 
Lone Tree to be affixed this 1st day of September 2015. 

 
 
 
 
  ______________________________ 
  James D. Gunning 

Mayor 

09/01/15 City Council Packet Page 3 of 53



MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF LONE TREE 
HELD 

August 18, 2015 
 

A regular meeting of the Council of the City of Lone Tree was held on Tuesday, 
August 18, 2015, at 6:00 p.m., at the Lone Tree City Council Chambers located at 
8527 Lone Tree Parkway, Lone Tree, Colorado 80124. 
  

 
Attendance  
  In attendance were: 
 

James D. Gunning, Mayor 
Jacqueline Millet, Mayor Pro Tem  
Harold Anderson, Council Member 
Kim Monson, Council Member  
Susan Squyer, Council Member 
 
Also in attendance were: 

 
Seth Hoffman, City Manager 
Jennifer Pettinger, City Clerk 
Steve Hebert, Deputy City Manager 
Torie Brazitis, Assistant to the City Manager 
Jeff Holwell, Economic Development Director 
Chief Jeffery Streeter, Lone Tree Police Department 
Kristin Baumgartner, Finance Director  
Kelly First, Community Development Director 
Neil Rutledge, City Attorney, White, Bear and Ankele, P.C. 
John Cotten, Public Works Director, TTG Corp. 
   

 
Call to Order 
  Mayor Gunning called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m., and observed that a  
  quorum was present. 

  
 
Executive Session 

Mayor Gunning announced City Council intends to convene in Executive Session.  
Neil Rutledge, City Attorney, stated the Executive Session is for the purpose of 
determining positions relative to matters that may be subject to negotiations, 
developing strategies for negotiations, personnel matters, and/or instructing 
negotiators, under C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(e) and to discuss the purchase, 
acquisition, lease, transfer, or sale of real, personal, or other property interest under 
C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(a) concerning Argonaut Holdings. Council Member 

09/01/15 City Council Packet Page 4 of 53



Anderson moved, seconded by Council Member Squyer, for City Council to recess 
and convene in Executive Session for the reasons stated. The motion passed with a 
5 to 0 vote. 

Council adjourned to an Executive Session at 6:00 p.m. 

Mayor Gunning convened the Executive Session at 6:17 p.m., following a short 
recess. 

The Executive Session was adjourned at 6:36 p.m. 

Mayor Gunning reconvened the meeting in Regular Session at 7:00 p.m., 
following a short recess. 

Pledge of Allegiance 
Mayor Gunning led those assembled in reciting the Pledge of Allegiance. 

Amendments to the Agenda 
There were no amendments to the agenda. 
______ 

Conflict of Interest 
There was no conflict of interest. 
______ 

Public Comment 
Bill Robertson, 9278 E. Aspen Hill Circle, shared with Council his experience 
with a new restaurant in town.  
______ 

Announcements 
Mayor Gunning announced upcoming events. 
______ 

Consent Agenda 
Mayor Gunning noted the following items on the Consent Agenda, which
consisted of: 

 Minutes of the August 4, 2015 Regular Meeting
 Minutes of the August 4, 2015 Liquor License Authority Meeting
 Claims for the Period of July 27 – August 10, 2015
 Treasurer’s Report for June 2015

Mayor Pro Tem Millet moved, Council Member Squyer seconded, to approve the 
Consent Agenda. The motion passed with a 5 to 0 vote. 

09/01/15 City Council Packet Page 5 of 53



   
 
Community Development 

Public Hearing: General Motors replat, rezone (First reading) and SIP 
amendment  
  
Parkway Filing 1, Block 3, Lot 1 and Tract H Project SB15-51 (subdivision 
replat) 
  
Public Hearing: Ordinance 15-02, APPROVING THE REZONING OF 
CERTAIN TERRITORY KNOWN AND DESIGNATED AS A PORTION OF 
TRACT H, PARKWAY SUBDIVISION FILING NO. 1, IN THE CITY OF 
LONE TREE, COLORADO (GENERAL MOTORS) (First Reading) Project 
ZR15-37  
  
Parkway Filing 1, Block 3, Lot 4, Project SP15-36 SIP amendment for added 
parking and related changes 
  
Mayor Gunning opened the public hearing at 7:03 p.m. 
 
Jennifer Drybread, Senior Planner, introduced the items. Jim Fitzsimmons, 
representative for the applicant, spoke about the application. Melissa Reese-
Thacker, South Suburban Parks & Recreation District, also spoke in favor of the 
application. 
 
The public hearing was opened for comment at 7:16 p.m.  
 
There was no public comment. 
 
Council Member Anderson moved, Mayor Pro Tem Millet seconded, to continue 
the public hearing to the next scheduled council meeting to allow staff to work 
with the applicant on the proposed property conveyance. The motion passed with 
a 5 to 0 vote. 
  
 

Administrative Matters 
Ordinance 15-03, AMENDING PROVISIONS OF THE SALES TAX AND 
BUSINESS LICENSING ORDINANCES (First Reading)  
 
Kristin Baumgartner, Finance Director, introduced the item.  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Millet moved, Council Member Monson seconded, to approve 
Ordinance 15-03, AMENDING PROVISIONS OF THE SALES TAX AND 
BUSINESS LICENSING ORDINANCES on first reading. The motion passed 
with a 5 to 0 vote. 
  
Public Hearing: Emergency Ordinance 15-04, ACCEPTING A PETITION FOR 

09/01/15 City Council Packet Page 6 of 53



THE ORGANIZATION OF A BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT IN 
THE CITY OF LONE TREE AND ESTABLISHING, CREATING AND 
ORGANIZING THE LONE TREE BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT  

 
Mayor Gunning opened the public hearing at 7:24 p.m.  
 
Jeff Holwell, Economic Development Director, introduced the item.  
 
Mayor Gunning opened the public hearing for comment at 7:32 p.m. 
 
Brad Wiseman and Tony Nicholas, Park Meadows Business Trust, spoke in favor 
of the ordinance and establishing the District. 
 
Ken Marsh, representative for Lone Tree Investments, LLC (who own the Panera  
Bread property), also spoke in favor of the establishing the District. 
 
Pat McGaughran, Rio Grande Restaurant, stated the 49535 Park Meadows Group 
is in favor of establishing the BID. Mr. McGaughran thanked Steve Hebert and 
Jeff Holwell for their work on this project. 
 
Mayor Gunning closed the public hearing for comment at 7:38 p.m.  
 
Council Member Squyer moved, Council Member Anderson seconded, to 
approve Emergency Ordinance 15-04, ACCEPTING A PETITION FOR THE 
ORGANIZATION OF A BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT IN THE 
CITY OF LONE TREE AND ESTABLISHING, CREATING AND 
ORGANIZING THE LONE TREE BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT 
DISTRICT.  The motion passed with a 5 to 0 vote. 
  
 

Council Comments 
 Council shared their comments. 

  
 
Adjournment  

There being no further business, Mayor Gunning adjourned the meeting at  
7:49 p.m. 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
       
Jennifer Pettinger, CMC, City Clerk 

09/01/15 City Council Packet Page 7 of 53



STAFF REPORT 

To: Mayor Gunning and City Council 

From: Kelly First, Director of Community Development 
Jennifer Drybread, Senior Planner 

Date: August 26, 2015 

SUBJECT: Parkway Filing 1, a replat of Block 3, Lot 1 and Tract H 
Project SB15-51 

Parkway Filing 1, rezoning from POS to C1 
Project ZR15-37 

Parkway Filing 1, Block 3, Lot 4, site improvement plan 
Project SP15-36 

Owner: Representative: 
Argonaut Holdings, LLC  JR Engineering, Jim Fitzmorris 
300 Renaissance Center, 19th Floor 7200 S. Alton Way, Suite C400 
Detroit, Michigan 48265  Centennial, CO 80112 

Planning Commission Hearing Date:  July 28, 2015  
City Council Hearing Date:     September 1, 2015 (continued 
from August 18th)  
________________________________________________________________ 

A. BACKGROUND: 

The City Council continued the replat, rezoning and site improvement plan 
applications on the above mentioned property at their meeting on August 
18, 2015 until September 1, 2015. The purpose of the continuance was to 
provide time for the applicant and the City to further evaluate the equity of 
the land swap – either through an adjustment in land area (between 
Argonaut Holdings, LLC and the City), an assessment of land value, or 
both.  

09/01/15 City Council Packet Page 8 of 53



In response, the applicant has evaluated the issue and prepared a 
position paper for City Council’s consideration (attached).  The applicant 
now proposes: 

• To increase the size of Tract A (proposed for dedication to the
City) by 0.0069 acres from the original proposal of 0.2543 acres to
0.2612 acres

• To reduce the size of Tract H (proposed for conveyance to the
applicant) by 0.0317 acres from the original proposal of 0.3973
acres to 0.3656 acres

The difference in land area between Tract H and Tract A is now 0.1044 
acres 

Based on the appraiser’s estimated valuations:  

Tract A @ $5.00/sq. ft.   x   11,377.9 sq. ft. = $56,889.50 + $5,420 (value 
of area of adjacent buffer) = $62,309.50 

Tract H @ $2.00/sq. ft.   x    15,925.5 sq. ft. = $31,851.00 

The applicant is suggesting that the value of what Argonaut is giving to the 
City compared to what they are receiving from the City is a deficiency of 
$30,458.50, although they are not seeking compensation for that 
difference. Further, the applicant suggests that even if the value of the 
City’s property were reduced to $3.00/sq. ft., there would still be a 
deficiency to Argonaut ($7,702.70).  

B. COUNCIL ACTION: 

Due to the short turnaround between the Council’s last meeting on these 
applications on July 18th, staff and the applicant did not have time to 
change the associated exhibits. Should City Council act to approve the 
replat, rezoning (and associated ordinance), and site improvement plan, 
we ask that approvals be conditioned based upon changing the acreage 
on the exhibits as necessary. 

END 

09/01/15 City Council Packet Page 9 of 53



09/01/15 City Council Packet Page 10 of 53



09/01/15 City Council Packet Page 11 of 53



09/01/15 City Council Packet Page 12 of 53



09/01/15 City Council Packet Page 13 of 53



09/01/15 City Council Packet Page 14 of 53



09/01/15 City Council Packet Page 15 of 53



 
CITY OF LONE TREE 
STAFF REPORT 

 
 

Project Summary 
 

 
Date:   September 1, 2015 City Council Meeting 
 
 
Project Name: RidgeGate Section 15, Filing 17, 1st Amendment 
   (Replat, RidgeGate III) 
 
 
Location: The property is located in RidgeGate between Chatham Drive and 

Sky Ridge Avenue and between Park Meadows Boulevard and Train 
Station Circle.  

 
Project Type / #: Replat, Project #SB15-42R 
 
 
Staff Contacts: Kelly First, Community Development Director 
 Jennifer Drybread, Senior Planner 
 
Meeting Type: Public Meeting   
 
 
Summary of Request:   

Approval of a replat allowing 1 lot to be subdivided into 2 lots and 
also setting aside an area for a vehicular drop off (Tract A) on Train 
Station Circle associated with the future Sky Ridge Station. The 
northern- most lot will accommodate an apartment building 
approved by City Council on August 4, 2015 (RidgeGate III, SP15-
29R). There are no development plans at this time in process with 
the City for the southern-most lot.   

 
 
Planning Commission Recommendation: 
 Not applicable. 
 
Suggested Action:  
 Approval, subject to final approval by Lone Tree Public Works 

Department.  

09/01/15 City Council Packet Page 16 of 53



 
CITY OF LONE TREE 

STAFF REPORT 
 
TO:  Mayor Gunning and City Council 
 
FROM: Kelly First, Community Development Director 
  Jennifer Drybread, Senior Planner 
 
DATE: August 26, 2015 
 
FOR:  September 1, 2015, City Council Meeting 
 
SUBJECT: RidgeGate Section 15, Filing 17, 1st Amendment 
 Replat (RidgeGate III), Project #SB14-29R 
  
Owner:      Representative: 
RidgeGate Investments, Inc.   Keith Simon 
10270 Commonwealth St., Suite B.  10270 Commonwealth St., Suite B 
Lone Tree, CO  80124    Lone Tree, CO  80124   

       
 
 
Planning Commission Meeting Date:    Not applicable 
City Council Meeting/Hearing Date:      September 1, 2015  
  
______________________________________________________________________ 
 

A. REQUEST: 
 

Approval of a replat allowing 1 lot to be subdivided into 2 lots and the 
accommodation of land for a vehicular drop off (Tract A) on Train Station 
Circle associated with the future Sky Ridge Station.    
 

B. LOCATION: 
 
The property is located in RidgeGate between Chatham Drive and Sky 
Ridge Avenue and between Park Meadows Boulevard and Train Station 
Circle.  

09/01/15 City Council Packet Page 17 of 53



C. BACKGROUND: 
 
This property is currently subdivided into one large lot (Lot 6) as part of 
RidgeGate Section 15, Filing 17, approved by the City Council on July 19, 
2011. This application proposes further subdivision of Lot 6 into 2 lots. 
This will allow for the sale and construction of an apartment building 
(Martin Fein Interests, aka, RidgeGate III), approved by City Council on 
August 4, 2015. As this is a replat, the Planning Commission did not hear 
this application. 
 
The proposed replat is processed in accordance with Section 17-7-70 of 
the City Subdivision Code, which requires City Council approval of a replat 
where any new lots are created for uses other than single-family detached 
residential.  
 

  
D. DESCRIPTION: 

 
Zoning.   The approved residential use is permitted by zoning. The 
property is zoned PD and is within a Commercial-Mixed Use (C/MU) 
Planning Area in the RidgeGate Planned Development.  
 
 

E. SITE CHARACTERISTICS: 
 

The property had been overlot graded, and consists largely of grasses and 
weeds.  The property gently slopes down from south to north. 
 
 

F. SERVICE PROVIDERS:   
 
Water:   Southgate Water District 
Sanitation:  Southgate Sanitation District 
Police:  Lone Tree Police 
Fire:   South Metro Fire Rescue Authority 
Metro District: Rampart Range Metropolitan District 

 
 

G. REFERRALS: 
 

Referral responses from agencies ranged from no comment to notification 
of issues that are primarily procedural or technical in nature and will be 
addressed to the satisfaction of Lone Tree Public Works prior to final plat 
approval and recordation.  
 

 

09/01/15 City Council Packet Page 18 of 53



H. STAFF FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff finds that the application is in conformance with the Subdivision 
Code, the Zoning Code, the Comprehensive Plan, and the RidgeGate 
RidgeGate Sky Ridge Station TOD Sub-Area Plan.   
 
Staff recommends approval of replat, subject to final approval by the 
Public Works Department. 
 

 
 
 
END 
 

09/01/15 City Council Packet Page 19 of 53



09/01/15 City Council Packet Page 20 of 53



09/01/15 City Council Packet Page 21 of 53



09/01/15 City Council Packet Page 22 of 53



09/01/15 City Council Packet Page 23 of 53



09/01/15 City Council Packet Page 24 of 53



09/01/15 City Council Packet Page 25 of 53



09/01/15 City Council Packet Page 26 of 53



09/01/15 City Council Packet Page 27 of 53



09/01/15 City Council Packet Page 28 of 53



09/01/15 City Council Packet Page 29 of 53



 

 
CITY OF LONE TREE 

STAFF REPORT 
      

 
TO:   Mayor Gunning and City Council 

FROM:  Seth Hoffman, City Manager 

Jeff Holwell, Economic Development Director 

DATE:  August 20, 2015 

FOR:   September 1, 2015 City Council Meeting 

SUBJECT: Approval of Ordinance 15-05, Dissolving the Lone Tree 
Entertainment Business Improvement District (BID) 

Summary 
The City of Lone Tree has received a petition requesting the dissolution of the 
“Lone Tree Entertainment Business Improvement District,” which includes a 
variety of parcels but generally located south of Park Meadows Drive and east of 
Yosemite.  This should not be confused with the new Lone Tree BID, which is 
located entirely north of Park Meadows Drive and would become official after the 
existing district is dissolved. 
 
The property owners/petitioners request that the Lone Tree City Council dissolve 
the District via ordinance, which has not been operational since 2012, but would 
require an official action of City Council to discontinue its existence. 
 
This is introduced as an emergency ordinance because it will be adopted after a 
single reading, allowing the new Lone Tree BID to incorporate and submit 
November ballot questions under the required timelines.  Because there is an 
overlapping property, dissolution of the existing BID is required before the new 
BID can move forward. 
 
Background 
The Lone Tree Entertainment Business Improvement District was established in 
1999 and today consists of 19 lots and approximately $12.5 million in assessed 
value.  Petitioners include DSMC Ventures (Go Putt), Rocky Mountain Law 
Enforcement Credit Union, Stonybook Investments, Matacota LLC, DA&D LLC, 
LOUDECO LLC (Brewery Bar), MJR Holdings LLC (Treo), John and Connie 

09/01/15 City Council Packet Page 30 of 53



 

Turnock (Miyama), Colorado Real Estate LLC (Dr. Angela Osborne), Park 
Meadows LLC (U of C Medical Office Building), Teddy LN LLC, and Teddy Lane 
LLC.  These petitioners represent 21.55 acres and $7,407,909 in assessed value, 
greater than the 50% acreage and greater than the 50% real and personal property 
threshold required for a valid petition. 
 
The Lone Tree Entertainment Business Improvement District has not been 
operational since 2012, when its bonds were paid off via its assessment revenues.  
That said, it remains an organized district and the BID has been filing zero based 
budgets/operational plans per statutory requirements.  The district is no longer 
necessary and dissolution would end these filing requirements and would allow the 
new Lone Tree BID to move forward, as there is one overlapping property between 
the two districts. 
 
Cost and Budget 
Except for the staff time already invested in this process, there is no cost to the 
city to dissolve the district. 
 
Suggested Motion or Recommended Action 
I move to adopt Ordinance 15-05, an Emergency Ordinance for the Dissolution of 
the Existing Lone Tree Entertainment Business Improvement District. 
 
 

09/01/15 City Council Packet Page 31 of 53



Ord 15-05  Pg 1 of 4 
 

ORDINANCE OF THE  
CITY OF LONE TREE 

 
Series of 2015                 Ordinance No. 15-05 

 

AN EMERGENCY ORDINANCE FOR THE DISSOLUTION OF THE EXISTING 
LONE TREE ENTERTAINMENT BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LONE TREE, 
COLORADO: 
 

ARTICLE 1 – AUTHORITY 

The City of Lone Tree (the "City") is a home rule municipality operating under the Lone 
Tree Home Rule Charter (the “Charter”) adopted on May 5, 1998 and a Municipal Code (the 
“Code”), codified and adopted on December 7, 2004.  Pursuant to the Charter, the Municipal Code 
and the authority given home rule cities, the City may adopt and amend Ordinances.  

 

ARTICLE 2 – SAFETY CLAUSE  
 

 The City Council hereby finds, determines, and declares that this Ordinance is promulgated 
under the general police power of the City, that it is promulgated for the health, safety, and welfare 
of the public, and that this Ordinance is necessary for the preservation of health and safety and for 
the protection of public convenience and welfare. 
 

ARTICLE 3 – EMERGENCY ORDINANCE 

 This Ordinance is being adopted pursuant to the provisions of Article V, Section 8 of the 
City Charter, adopted May 5, 1998.  The City Council finds that there exists an immediate threat 
to the preservation of public health, welfare, peace, safety and property and that this Ordinance is 
necessary for the protection of public convenience, welfare and property. The urgency and need 
for passing this Ordinance is that there is currently a Lone Tree Entertainment Business 
Improvement District that has fulfilled its purpose and is no longer necessary (the “Dormant 
BID”), and the continued existence of the Dormant BID is preventing the organization of a new 
business improvement district (the “Proposed BID”).  A petition for the Proposed BID has been 
received, but its planned boundaries would overlap with a portion of the Dormant BID. Pursuant 
to Section 31-25-1208(1) of the Colorado Business Improvement District Act (the “Act”), no 
business improvement district may be organized wholly or partly within an existing business 
improvement district. Since the Dormant BID would overlap with the Proposed BID, the Dormant 
BID must be dissolved before the organization of the Proposed BID.  The Proposed BID is to be 

09/01/15 City Council Packet Page 32 of 53



Ord 15-05  Pg 2 of 4 
 

created and organized no later than September 4, 2015, in order for a ballot certification and 
subsequent November election to occur to authorize the various powers that are integral to the 
Proposed BID’s purpose and functionality.  

ARTICLE 4 – FINDINGS OF FACT 
 

A. The City Council established the Dormant BID on October 19, 1999 with the 
passage of Ordinance No. 99-08. 
 

B. A Petition for the Dissolution of the Dormant BID (the "Petition'') has been filed in 
the office of the City Clerk of the City of Lone Tree. 

 
C. The Petition has been reviewed by the City Clerk and a public hearing was held by 

the City Council, after proper notice, on September 1, 2015, at which time the petitioners and other 
interested parties gave testimony. 

 
D. The evidence presented in the Petition and at the public hearing on the matter 

demonstrated that all conditions imposed by Colorado Statutes for the dissolution of a business 
improvement district were met. 

 
E. Pursuant to Section 31-25-1225 and 31-25-1205(2), C.R.S. of the Act, the 

signatures on the Petition are genuine, and the Petition has been signed by persons who own real 
or personal property in the service area of the District having a valuation for assessment of not less 
than fifty percent (50%) of the valuation for assessment of all real and personal property in the 
service area of the District and who own at least fifty percent (50%) of the acreage in the District. 

 
F. The Petition is duly signed and presented in conformity with the requirements of 

the Business Improvement District Act and the allegations in the Petition are true. 
 

G. The dissolution of the District will serve a public use and will promote the health, 
security and general welfare of the inhabitants of the City and the property owners of the District. 
 

H. Pursuant to the authority to dissolve business improvement districts under the Act, 
Section 31-25-1225, C.R.S., the City Council desires to accept the Petition and dissolve the 
business improvement district described in the Petition for Dissolution of the Lone Tree 
Entertainment Business Improvement District.   
 

ARTICLE 5 – DISSOLUTION 

 Based upon the findings and determinations set forth herein and at the public hearing, the 
City Council, by this Ordinance, hereby authorizes the dissolution of the Lone Tree Entertainment 
Business Improvement District and any special improvement districts created within the Lone Tree 
Entertainment Business Improvement District’s boundaries, specifically including Special 
Improvement District No. 2000-1.   

 

09/01/15 City Council Packet Page 33 of 53



Ord 15-05  Pg 3 of 4 
 

 

 

ARTICLE 6 – RATIFICATION AND APPROVAL OF PRIOR ACTION 

 All actions heretofore taken by the officers of the City and the members of the Council 
consistent with the provisions of this Ordinance and relating to the dissolution of the District are 
hereby ratified, approved, and confirmed. 

 
ARTICLE 7 – SEVERABILITY 

 If any part or provision of this Ordinance, or its application to any person or circumstance, 
is adjudged to be invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity or unenforceability of such part, 
provision, or application shall not affect any of the remaining parts, provisions or applications of 
this Ordinance that can be given effect without the invalid provision, part or application, and to 
this end the provisions and parts of this Ordinance are declared to be severable. 

 

ARTICLE 8 – REPEALER  

 All orders, resolutions, bylaws, ordinances or regulations of the City, or parts thereof, 
inconsistent with this Ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent only of such inconsistency.   

 

ARTICLE 9 – RECORDING AND AUTHENTICATION 

 Pursuant to Section 31-25-1225 C.R.S., a certified copy this Ordinance shall be filed in the 
office of the county clerk and recorder in Douglas County.  Immediately on its passage this 
Ordinance shall be kept and maintained by the City Clerk or City Manager in such form as is 
sufficient to assure reasonable access to the public. It shall be the duty of the Mayor and City Clerk 
to authenticate such records by their official signatures thereon, but the failure to so record and 
authenticate this Ordinance shall not invalidate it or suspend its operation. 

 

ARTICLE 10 – EFFECTIVE DATE 
 This Ordinance shall take effect upon adoption on first reading and shall be published in 
full immediately after adoption.  This Ordinance shall not be in effect longer than ninety (90) days 
after adoption unless the City Council shall affirm the same by re-adoption of said Ordinance on 
second reading and publication on a non-emergency basis within said ninety (90) day period. 

 
  
 

09/01/15 City Council Packet Page 34 of 53



Ord 15-05  Pg 4 of 4 
 

 

INTRODUCED, READ AND ORDERED PUBLISHED ON SEPTEMBER 1, 2015. 

 

 

 

       CITY OF LONE TREE 

 

 

       _______________________ 
James D. Gunning, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

      
Jennifer Pettinger, CMC, City Clerk   (SEAL)  

09/01/15 City Council Packet Page 35 of 53



䰀漀渀攀 吀爀攀攀 䔀渀琀攀爀琀愀椀渀洀攀渀琀 䈀甀猀椀渀攀猀猀 䤀洀瀀爀漀瘀攀洀攀渀琀 䐀椀猀琀爀椀挀琀

09/01/15 City Council Packet Page 36 of 53



 
 
 
 
 

STAFF REPORT 
      

 
TO:   Mayor Gunning and City Council 

FROM:  Kristin Baumgartner, Finance Director 

DATE:  August 19, 2015 

FOR:   September 1, 2015, City Council Meeting 

SUBJECT: Ordinance 15-03, AMENDING PROVISIONS OF THE 
SALES TAX AND BUSINESS LICENSING ORDINANCES  

Summary 
In an effort to continue to help promote a business friendly environment in the City, staff 
is recommending City Council extend the sales tax licensing period from one year to two 
years to promote efficiency and align the City’s procedures with those of the State of 
Colorado.  
 
The new ordinance will change the sales tax license to a biennial license with a fee of 
$15 due on or before the first day of business or the first day of January of each even 
numbered calendar year.  For example, business licenses issued at the end of 2015 will 
be for the January 2016- December 2017 period.   
 
Additionally, clarification was made to the ordinance that for business licenses, a one-
time $10 fee is required with the initial application and the business license does not 
have an expiration date.   
 
Cost 
N/A 
 
Suggested Motion or Recommended Action 
I move to approve Ordinance 15-03, AMENDING PROVISIONS OF THE SALES 
TAX AND BUSINESS LICENSING ORDINANCES on second reading.    
 
Background 
All businesses in Lone Tree are required to get a business license and register 
with the City.  This allows the City to know who is doing business in the City and 
track the number, type, location, size, contact information, etc., of all City 
businesses.  Currently the City issues two types of business licenses, a general 
business license and a retail sales tax license.  A general business license is a 
one-time fee of $10 and does not expire. With this ordinance change, the City is 

09/01/15 City Council Packet Page 37 of 53



recommending changing the retail sales tax license to a biennial license with a 
$15 fee (previously there was a $10 annual fee).  City staff feels with the reduced 
administrative time involved with processing fees annually as well as the 
implementation of the online process, the City is able to reduce the fee at this 
time as well as decrease the administrative burden of processing renewals 
annually.   

09/01/15 City Council Packet Page 38 of 53



ORDINANCE OF THE  
CITY OF LONE TREE 

 
Series of 2015 Ordinance No. 15-03 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING PROVISIONS  

OF THE SALES TAX AND BUSINESS LICENSING ORDINANCES 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LONE TREE, 
COLORADO: 

 

ARTICLE 1 – AUTHORITY 

The City of Lone Tree (the "City") is a home rule municipality operating under the Lone 
Tree Home Rule Charter (the “Charter”) adopted on May 5, 1998 and a Municipal Code (the 
“Code”), codified and adopted on December 7, 2004.  Pursuant to the Charter, the Municipal Code 
and the authority given home rule cities, the City may adopt and amend Ordinances.  

  

ARTICLE 2 – DECLARATIONS OF POLICY 

A. The City Council periodically reviews its sales tax licensing policies and 
procedures to help promote a business friendly environment in the City.  

B. The City Council recognizes the advantages of extending the sales tax licensing 
period from one year to two years to promote efficiency and align the City’s 
procedures with those of the state licensing authority.   

C.   The City Council also desires that the duration of a business license be extended so 
that it has no expiration date, thereby eliminating the need for businesses to renew 
or pay additional licensing fees.  

 
D. The City Council believes these amendments will simplify, clarify and strengthen 

the City’s sales tax licensing and business licensing procedures and reduce fees to 
those doing business in the City.  

 
 

ARTICLE 3 – SAFETY CLAUSE 
 
  The City Council hereby finds, determines, and declares that this Ordinance is promulgated 

under the general police power of the City, that it is promulgated for the health, safety, and welfare 
of the public, and that this Ordinance is necessary for the preservation of health and safety and for 
the protection of public convenience and welfare. 

09/01/15 City Council Packet Page 39 of 53



 

ARTICLE 4 – ADOPTION  

A. Section 4-3-310 of the Code is repealed and replaced by the following: 
 

Sec. 4-3-310.  Biennial sales tax license required.  

 (a) No person shall engage in business within the City, including transactions or the 
exercise of privileges subject to sales or use tax, whether said business is in a fixed location or 
conducted door-to-door, from movable carts, wagons, vehicles or other mobile devices, or from 
locations used from time to time on street curbs, medians, sidewalks or otherwise, without 
having first obtained a biennial retail sales tax license and paid a biennial sales tax licensing fee 
to the City in the amount of fifteen dollars ($15.00) on or before the first day of business or the 
first day of January of each even numbered calendar year. 
 
 (b) Failure of a person to pay the stated sum by February 28 of each even numbered 
calendar year shall result in the loss of that person's privilege to operate a business within the 
City, including suspension or revocation of existing licensing. For those engaged in business 
who fail to comply with licensing requirements, the City Manager may issue an order to cease 
and desist business operations, to be enforced in accordance with the law in such case made and 
provided.  
 
 (c) In instances in which the business of selling at retail is conducted or transacted 
at two (2) or more separate locations by one (1) person, separate licenses for each location of 
such business shall be required.  

 

B. Section 4-3-510 of the Code is repealed and replaced by the following: 
 

Sec. 4-3-510.   Licensing violations.  

It shall be a violation of this Article for a retailer to engage in business within the City from 
a location within the City without having first obtained from the City Manager by January 1 of 
each even numbered calendar year or the first day of operations, a biennial retail sales tax license 
and a biennial renewal thereof by January 1 of each even numbered calendar year. For each 
violation, a penalty of one hundred dollars ($100.00) shall be imposed. This penalty shall be in 
addition to any other applicable penalties and interest imposed under the taxing power for tax 
deficiencies. Operating without a license for each twenty-four-hour period shall be considered a 
separate and distinct violation. The penalty shall not be imposed for renewals of the license if the 
biennial fee is paid on or before February 28 of each even numbered calendar year.  

 

09/01/15 City Council Packet Page 40 of 53



C. Section 6-3-60 of the Code is repealed and replaced by the following: 
 
 

Sec. 6-3-60.  Fees and term of business license.  
 

Each application for a business license shall be accompanied by payment of a one-time fee in 
the amount of ten dollars ($10.00). A business license does not have an expiration date.  A business 
license remains active until cancelled by the license holder, suspended or revoked by the City.  
This fee is subject to adjustment by the City Manager based upon actual administrative costs and 
expenses.  

 
 
ARTICLE 5 - SEVERABILITY 

If any part or provision of this Ordinance, or its application to any person or circumstance 
is adjudged to be invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity or unenforceability of such part, provision 
or application shall not affect any of the remaining parts, provisions or applications of this 
Ordinance which can be given the effect without the invalid provision, part or application, and to 
this end the provisions and parts of this Ordinance are declared to be severable. 

 

ARTICLE 6 – CAUSES OF ACTION RETAINED 
 
 Nothing in this Ordinance hereby adopted shall be construed to affect any suit or 
proceeding impending in any court, or any rights acquired, or liability incurred, or any cause or 
causes of action acquired or existing, under any act or ordinance hereby repealed; nor shall any 
just or legal right or remedy of any character be lost, impaired or affected by this Ordinance. 

 

ARTICLE 7 - EFFECTIVE DATE 

This Ordinance shall take effect thirty (30) days following publication after the first reading 
if no changes are made on second reading, or twenty (20) days after publication following second 
reading if changes are made upon second reading. 

 

 

 

 

09/01/15 City Council Packet Page 41 of 53



 

 

INTRODUCED READ AND ORDERED PUBLISHED ON AUGUST 18, 2015. 

PUBLISHED IN THE DOUGLAS COUNTY NEWS PRESS ON AUGUST 27, 2015 
LEGAL NOTICE NO. 927633. 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED WITH NO CHANGES ON SECOND READING ON 
SEPTEMBER 1, 2015, TO BECOME EFFECTIVE ON SEPTEMBER 26, 2015.    

 

 

 

        CITY OF LONE TREE: 

 

        _____________________________ 
        James D. Gunning, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

         (SEAL) 

_____________________________  
Jennifer Pettinger, CMC, City Clerk 

 
 
 
 
 
 

09/01/15 City Council Packet Page 42 of 53



• Sec. 4-3-310. - Sales– Biennial sales tax license required.  

(a) 
No person shall engage in business within the City, including transactions or the exercise of privileges 
subject to sales or use tax, whether said business is in a fixed location or conducted door-to-door, from 
movable carts, wagons, vehicles or other mobile devices, or from locations used from time to time on 
street curbs, medians, sidewalks or otherwise, without having first obtained a biennial retail sales tax 
license and paid an annuala biennial sales tax licensing fee to the City in the amount of tenfifteen dollars 
($1015.00) on or before the first day of business or the first day of January of each even numbered 
calendar year.  

(b) 
Failure of a person to pay the stated sum by February 28 of each even numbered calendar year shall 
result in the loss of that person's privilege to operate a business within the City, including suspension or 
revocation of existing licensing. For those engaged in business who fail to comply with licensing 
requirements, the City Manager may issue an order to cease and desist business operations, to be 
enforced in accordance with the law in such case made and provided.  

(c) 
In instances in which the business of selling at retail is conducted or transacted at two (2) or more 
separate locations by one (1) person, separate licenses for each location of such business shall be 
required.  

• Sec. 4-3-510. - Licensing violations.  

It shall be a violation of this Article for a retailer to engage in business within the City from a location     
within the City without having first obtained from the City Manager by January 1 of each even numbered 
calendar year or the first day of operations, a biennial retail sales tax license and a biennial renewal 
thereof by January 1 of each succeedingeven numbered calendar year.  For each violation, a penalty of 
one hundred dollars ($100.00) shall be imposed. This penalty shall be in addition to any other applicable 
penalties and interest imposed under the taxing power for tax deficiencies. Operating without a license 
for each twenty-four-hour period shall be considered a separate and distinct violation. The penalty shall 
not be imposed for renewals of the license if the annualbiennial fee is paid on or before February 28 of 
each even numbered calendar year.  

• Sec. 6-3-60. - Fees and term of business license.  

Each application for a business license shall be accompanied by payment of a one-time fee in the amount 
of ten dollars ($10.00). A business license does not have an expiration date.  A business license remains 
active until cancelled by the license holder, suspended or revoked by the City.  This fee is subject to 
adjustment by the City Manager based upon actual administrative costs and expenses.  

 

09/01/15 City Council Packet Page 43 of 53



 
CITY OF LONE TREE 

STAFF REPORT 
      

 
TO:   Mayor Gunning and City Council 

FROM:  Seth Hoffman, City Manager 

Jeff Holwell, Economic Development Director 

DATE:  August 20, 2015 

FOR:   September 1, 2015 City Council Meeting 

SUBJECT: Approval of Emergency Ordinance 15-04, ACCEPTING A 
PETITION FOR THE ORGANIZATION OF A BUSINESS 
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT IN THE CITY OF LONE TREE 
AND ESTABLISHING, CREATING AND ORGANIZING THE 
LONE TREE BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
SUMMARY 

The City of Lone Tree has received a petition for the creation of the Lone Tree 
Business Improvement District (BID), located north of Park Meadows Drive, east 
of Yosemite, and south of C-470 in the Entertainment District.  The property 
owners/petitioners request that the Lone Tree City Council establish the District 
via ordinance and submit questions to its electors that would authorize a 20 mill 
property tax to financially support the BID and to authorize the issuance of bonds 
for potential infrastructure enhancements within its boundaries. 
 
This is the second public hearing regarding the BID ordinance and referendum.  
The first occurred on August 18th, and if accepted the BID would be created and 
ballot questions would appear before the property owners of the district (electors) 
for the November 3rd election.  
 
Background 
The proposed Lone Tree Business Improvement District consists of 28.74 acres, 
12 lots (i.e. real property owners), 23 personal property owners, and $11,026,250 
in assessed value.  Petitioners include the Park Meadows Business Trust (UA 
Movie Theatre Property), Pat and Mike Lone Tree LLC (Rio Grande), Herzman 
Niece’s Exempt Trust (Sweet Tomatoes Property), Park Meadows and Merchants 
LLC (India’s Clay Oven Property), and TCF National Bank Colorado.  These 

09/01/15 City Council Packet Page 44 of 53



petitioners represent 17.539 acres and $5,534,070 in assessed value, greater than 
the 50% acreage and greater than the 50% real and personal property threshold 
required for a valid petition. 
 
In the petition, activities the BID has proposed includes 1) parking lot and 
landscape improvements and common area maintenance, 2) marketing and 
directional signage, and 3) larger infrastructure improvements potentially 
including, but not limited to, those suggested in the 2013 “Lone Tree Plaza Vision 
Book.”  In addition, the BID Board of Directors would be, de facto, the Lone Tree 
City Council.  Although the BID Board would ultimately be responsible for 
revenue and expenditure decisions, it is suggested that the budget be dedicated 
to parking lot/landscape common area maintenance and to marketing, signage, 
and enhancements.  All of these activities are consistent the BID statute and 
other BID’s across Colorado. 
 
Cost and Budget 
City organizational costs in 2015 have been supported, as budgeted, through the 
economic development appropriation. In addition, will continue offering support 
relative to the BID election and related start-up activities. 
 
Once the BID is operational, and assuming the 20 mill property tax is approved, it 
will generate $220,526 annually under current assessed values.  The City is 
considering a $75,000 start-up contribution in 2016 to the BID as well, which will 
together (and depending upon taxes revenue available to the BID in 2016) create 
the 2016 BID budget, to be adopted by the BID board later this year.  We also 
expect to seat an independent board of directors, whose first responsibility will be 
to set the mill levy for the district and determine its 2016 operational plan.   
 
Long term, landscape and snow plow services have been quoted at $152,354.  
This would suggest that $68,172 is remaining annually for marketing and 
enhancements.  In addition, it is anticipated that the BID will look for other 
revenue sources and members, become the beneficiary of other city investments 
(such as the Kimmer intersection and the Kimmer park), and attract new private 
investment to fully realize the Lone Tree Entertainment District vision.  The Lone 
Tree BID is a first step in this redevelopment effort. 
 
Suggested Motion or Recommended Action 
I move to affirm by readoption Ordinance #15-04, an Emergency Ordinance 
Accepting a Petition for the Organization of a Business Improvement District in 
the City of Lone Tree and Establishing, Creating and Organizing the Lone Tree 
Business Improvement District. 
 
 

09/01/15 City Council Packet Page 45 of 53



ORDINANCE OF THE  
CITY OF LONE TREE 

 
Series of 2015                 Ordinance No. 15-04 

AN EMERGENCY ORDINANCE ACCEPTING A PETITION FOR THE 
ORGANIZATION OF A BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT IN THE CITY OF 

LONE TREE AND ESTABLISHING, CREATING AND ORGANIZING  
THE LONE TREE BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LONE TREE, 
COLORADO: 
 

ARTICLE 1 – AUTHORITY 

The City of Lone Tree (the "City") is a home rule municipality operating under the Lone 
Tree Home Rule Charter (the “Charter”) adopted on May 5, 1998 and a Municipal Code (the 
“Code”), codified and adopted on December 7, 2004.  Pursuant to the Charter, the Municipal Code 
and the authority given home rule cities, the City may adopt and amend Ordinances.  

 

ARTICLE 2 – SAFETY CLAUSE  
 
 The City Council hereby finds, determines, and declares that this Ordinance is promulgated 
under the general police power of the City, that it is promulgated for the health, safety, and welfare 
of the public, and that this Ordinance is necessary for the preservation of health and safety and for 
the protection of public convenience and welfare. 
 

ARTICLE 3 – EMERGENCY ORDINANCE 

 This Ordinance is being adopted pursuant to the provisions of Article V, Section 8 of the 
City Charter, adopted May 5, 1998.  The City Council finds that there exists an immediate threat 
to the preservation of public health, welfare, peace, safety and property and that this Ordinance is 
necessary for the protection of public convenience, welfare and property. The urgency and need 
for passing this Ordinance is that the Lone Tree Business Improvement District must be created 
and organized no later than September 4, 2015, for a timely ballot certification and subsequent 
election to occur to authorize various powers that are integral to the District’s purpose and 
functionality. 

ARTICLE 4 – PETITION FOR ORGANIZATION OF A BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT  
   DISTRICT 
 
 A.  Petition for the Organization of a Business Improvement District in the City (the 
"Petition'') has been filed in the office of the City Clerk of the City of Lone Tree. 

09/01/15 City Council Packet Page 46 of 53



B. The Petition for the proposed district, named the Lone Tree Business Improvement 
District (the “District”), has been reviewed by the City Clerk. 

 
C. The Petition was accompanied by a cash deposit in an amount which has been 

determined by the City to be sufficient to cover all expenses connected with the proceedings in 
case the organization of the District is not effected in accordance with law. 

 
D. Pursuant to its authority to organize Business Improvement Districts under the 

Business Improvement District Act, Section 31-25-1201, et seq. C.R.S. (the “Act"), the City 
Council of the City of Lone Tree (the “City Council”) desires to accept the Petition and organize 
the District described in the Petition within the City, contingent upon dissolution of the existing 
Lone Tree Entertainment Business Improvement District.      

 
ARTICLE 5 – FINDINGS OF FACT 
 

A. The City Council may, pursuant to its authority to organize Business Improvement 
Districts, Section 31-25-1207(5), in its sole discretion, declare the District organized, describe the 
boundaries and service area of the district, and give it the corporate name specified in the petition. 

 

B. Based on the tax rolls of Douglas County, the total valuation for the assessment of 
the taxable real and personal property in the service area of the District, and the classification of 
taxable property is as follows: 

Classification     Assessed Valuation 
Commercial Real Property   $10,102,900.00 
Personal Property    $ 923,350.00 
Total:       $11,026,250.00 

 
C. The signatures on the Petition are genuine, and the Petition has been signed by 

persons who own real or personal property in the service area of the District, having a valuation 
for assessment of not less than fifty percent of the valuation for assessment of all real and personal 
property in the service area of the District, and who own at least fifty percent (50%) of the acreage 
in the District. 

 
D. The Petition is duly signed and presented in conformity with the requirements of 

the Business Improvement District Act; the allegations of the Petition are true; and the types of 
services or improvements to be provided by the District are those services or improvements which 
best satisfy the purposes set forth in the Act. 

 
E. The organization of the District will serve a public use and will promote the health, 

security and general welfare of the inhabitants of the City and the property owners of the District. 
 

F. Organization of the District in compliance with Section 32-1-107(2), C.R.S. is 
contingent upon dissolution of the Lone Tree Entertainment Business Improvement District.  

 

09/01/15 City Council Packet Page 47 of 53



G. The District is located entirely within the boundaries of the City; no property is 
included within its boundaries which is residential or agricultural property or which is not 
commercial property; upon dissolution of the Lone Tree Entertainment Business Improvement 
District no part of such property is within an existing business improvement district; and the 
District does not include any personal property which is situated upon real estate not included in 
the boundaries of the District. 

 
ARTICLE 6 – ADOPTION 

A. Based upon the findings and determinations set forth herein, the City Council, by 
this ordinance, hereby adjudicates all questions of jurisdiction to find that it has full jurisdiction 
under the law to adopt this Ordinance, that the District for which the Petition has been filed is 
hereby declared organized contingent upon dissolution of the existing Lone Tree Entertainment 
Business Improvement District, and that the District shall be known as the Lone Tree Business 
Improvement District, by which, in all subsequent proceedings, it shall hereafter be known. The 
District shall be a quasi-municipal corporation and political subdivision of the State of Colorado 
with all of the powers and responsibilities thereof. 

 
B. The City Council shall hereby constitute ex officio the board of directors of the 

District (the “Board”). The presiding officer of the City Council shall be ex officio the presiding 
officer of the Board, the clerk of the City shall be ex officio the secretary of the Board, and the 
Finance Director of the City shall be ex officio the treasurer of the Board.  

 

ARTICLE 7 – BOUNDARIES AND SERVICE AREA OF THE PROPOSED DISTRICT 

A. Pursuant to Section 31-25-1205(2)(b), C.R.S., a general description of the 
boundaries of the District or the territory to be included therein is as follows: Park Meadows Drive 
to the south, South Yosemite Street to the west, C-470 to the north and the western boundary of 
9985 Park Meadows Drive to the east. A detailed legal description (Exhibit A) and map (Exhibit 
B) of the District are attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference.  

 
B. The service area of the proposed District is identical to the boundaries of the 

proposed District.   
 
 

ARTICLE 8 – SERVICES AND IMPROVEMENTS TO BE PROVIDED  

 Pursuant to Section 31-25-1205(2)(c), C.R.S., a general description of the improvements 
to be acquired, constructed, installed, operated, or maintained or the services to be provided within 
and for the District include 1) parking lot and landscaping improvements and common area 
maintenance; 2) marketing and directional signage and 3) larger infrastructure improvements 
potentially including, but not limited to, those suggested in the 2013 “Lone Tree Plaza Vision 
Book”. 
 

09/01/15 City Council Packet Page 48 of 53



ARTICLE 9 – SERVICE AREA DESIGNATION  

 The City Council hereby designates the property within the service area and boundaries of 
the District as a location for business and commercial development. 

 
ARTICLE 10 – RATIFICATION AND APPROVAL OF PRIOR ACTION 
 
 All actions heretofore taken by the officers of the City and the members of the City Council 
consistent with the provisions of this Ordinance and relating to the formation of the District are 
hereby ratified, approved, and confirmed. 

 
 

ARTICLE 11 – SEVERABILITY 

 If any part or provision of this Ordinance, or its application to any person or circumstance, 
is adjudged to be invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity or unenforceability of such part, 
provision, or application shall not affect any of the remaining parts, provisions or applications of 
this Ordinance that can be given effect without the invalid provision, part or application, and to 
this end the provisions and parts of this Ordinance are declared to be severable. 

 
ARTICLE 12 – REPEALER  
 
 All orders, resolutions, bylaws, ordinances or regulations of the City, or parts thereof, 
inconsistent with this Ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent only of such inconsistency.  
  
 
ARTICLE 13 – ORDINANCE CONCLUSIVE 
 
 This Ordinance shall finally and conclusively establish the regular organization of the 
District against all persons unless an action attacking the validity of the organization is commenced 
in a court of competent jurisdiction within thirty days after the adoption of this Ordinance. 
Thereafter, any such action shall be perpetually barred. 

 

ARTICLE 14 – RECORDING AND AUTHENTICATION 

 Immediately on its passage this Ordinance shall be kept and maintained by the City Clerk 
or City Manager in such form as is sufficient to assure reasonable access to the public. It shall be 
the duty of the Mayor and City Clerk to authenticate such records by their official signatures 
thereon, but the failure to so record and authenticate this Ordinance shall not invalidate it or 
suspend its operation. 

 
  

09/01/15 City Council Packet Page 49 of 53



ARTICLE 15 – PROVISIONS BECOME EFFECTIVE 

 The provisions of this Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon the dissolution 
of the Lone Tree Entertainment Business Improvement District.   

 
ARTICLE 16 – EFFECTIVE DATE OF ORDINANCE 

 This Ordinance shall take effect upon adoption on first reading and shall be published in 
full immediately after adoption.  This Ordinance shall not be in effect longer than ninety (90) days 
after adoption unless the City Council shall affirm the same by re-adoption of said Ordinance on 
second reading and publication on a non-emergency basis within said ninety (90) day period. 

 

INTRODUCED, READ AND ORDERED PUBLISHED ON AUGUST 18, 2015. 

PUBLISHED IN THE DOUGLAS COUNTY NEWS PRESS ON AUGUST 27, 2015, 
LEGAL NOTICE NO. 927634. 

AFFIRMED BY RE-ADOPTION ON SEPTEMBER 1, 2015. 

 

 

       CITY OF LONE TREE 

 

       _______________________ 
James D. Gunning, Mayor 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

      
Jennifer Pettinger, CMC, City Clerk   (SEAL) 

  

09/01/15 City Council Packet Page 50 of 53



 
EXHIBIT A 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
LONE TREE BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

 
LOTS 1, 2 AND 3, APPLEBEES AT LONE TREE SUBDIVISION FILING NO. 1, 
ACCORDING TO THE RECORDED PLAT THEREOF, DOUGLAS COUNTY, COLORADO 
 
LOT 1, PARK MEADOWS - FILING NO. 2, ACCORDING TO THE RECORDED PLAT 
THEREOF, DOUGLAS COUNTY, COLORADO, EXCEPTING THEREFROM THE 
PORTION CONVEYED IN THE DEED RECORDED AT RECEPTION NO. 2001023338 
 
LOTS 4, 5, 7 AND 8, PARK MEADOWS - FILING NO. 2, ACCORDING TO THE 
RECORDED PLAT THEREOF, DOUGLAS COUNTY, COLORADO 
 
LOTS 6 AND 6A, PARK MEADOWS - FILING NO. 2 – 1ST AMENDMENT, ACCORDING 
TO THE RECORDED PLAT THEREOF, DOUGLAS COUNTY, COLORADO 
 
LOTS 2A AND 3A, PARK MEADOWS - FILING NO. 2 – 14TH AMENDMENT, 
ACCORDING TO THE RECORDED PLAT THEREOF, DOUGLAS COUNTY, COLORADO 
 
ALL TOGETHER CONTAINING 28.74 ACRES, MORE OR LESS 
 
THIS LEGAL DESCRIPTION WAS PREPARED BY, OR UNDER THE DIRECT 
SUPERVISION OF, MICHAEL C. CREGGER, PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR, 
COLORADO REGISTRATION NO. 22564 FOR AND ON BEHALF OF TTG ENGINEERS, 
INC. ON AUGUST 5, 2015. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

09/01/15 City Council Packet Page 51 of 53



EXHIBIT B 
Map 

 

 

09/01/15 City Council Packet Page 52 of 53



CITY OF LONE TREE 
RESOLUTION NO. 15-11 

 
 

A RESOLUTION APPOINTING A REPRESENTATIVE  
TO THE DOUGLAS COUNTY HOUSING PARTNERSHIP 

 
WHEREAS, The City of Lone Tree has entered into an Intergovernmental Agreement with 

the jurisdictions of Castle Rock, Parker, and Douglas County to establish a multi-jurisdictional housing 
authority known as the Douglas County Housing Partnership, a Multi-jurisdictional Housing Authority 
(DCHP) ; and 

 WHEREAS, said Agreement provides that the membership of the Douglas County Housing 
Partnership, a Multi-jurisdictional Housing Authority, be comprised of two individuals per entity; 
and  

WHEREAS, there is currently one vacancy due to the resignation of Donna Russell, 
whose term expires on May 17, 2016; and 

 WHEREAS, Council desires to appoint Shelly Bryant to the Douglas County Housing 
Partnership, a Multi-jurisdictional Housing Authority. 

 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
LONE TREE, COLORADO: 

Shelly Bryant is hereby appointed  
to the Douglas County Housing Partnership  
for a term which expires on May 17, 2016. 

 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED THIS 1st DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2015 

 
      CITY OF LONE TREE 
 
 

       
     James D. Gunning, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
          (S E A L) 
Jennifer Pettinger, CMC, City Clerk 

09/01/15 City Council Packet Page 53 of 53


	2015-09-01 CC Agenda
	DAR Constitution Wk 2015
	2015-08-18 Minutes
	MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING
	CITY OF LONE TREE
	HELD
	August 18, 2015

	Final report GM Binder1 8-27-15
	B - GM - CC Staff Report Update
	From:  Kelly First, Director of Community Development
	Date:  August 26, 2015

	A Position Paper Lone Tree City Council 8-26-2015 with Exhibits

	CC - RG III Binder1
	1 - RG III CC Mtg Staff Report
	FROM: Kelly First, Community Development Director
	Jennifer Drybread, Senior Planner
	DATE: August 26, 2015
	FOR:  September 1, 2015, City Council Meeting
	D. DESCRIPTION:
	E. SITE CHARACTERISTICS:
	Referral responses from agencies ranged from no comment to notification of issues that are primarily procedural or technical in nature and will be addressed to the satisfaction of Lone Tree Public Works prior to final plat approval and recordation.
	H. STAFF FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATION:
	Staff finds that the application is in conformance with the Subdivision Code, the Zoning Code, the Comprehensive Plan, and the RidgeGate RidgeGate Sky Ridge Station TOD Sub-Area Plan.
	Staff recommends approval of replat, subject to final approval by the Public Works Department.
	END

	2 - RG III Misc
	3 - Filing 17 1st Amendment Plat_8-18-15
	1
	2


	1of3 City of Lone Tree - Staff Memo for Dissolving Lone Tree Entertainment Business Improvement District
	2of4 Ordinance 15-05  Dissolution Entertainment BID
	ARTICLE 4 – FINDINGS OF FACT

	30f3 Existing Lone Tree Business Improvement District Parcels 2012-06
	1of3 Business License Ordinance Change - Memo First Reading
	2of3 Ordinance 15-03 Sales Tax - Business Licenses
	3of3 Ord. 15-03 Redline Changes
	1of3 City of Lone Tree - Staff Memo for Lone Tree Business Improvement District Ordinance
	2of2 Ordinance 15-04  Lone Tree BID Organization
	ARTICLE 5 – FINDINGS OF FACT

	Res 15-11 Housing Partnership Appointment



